
 

 

CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

DECEMBER 21, 2015 

     6:30 P.M.  

                                                                  
1.  CALL TO ORDER 

2.  ROLL CALL  

 

     INVOCATION / Pastor Scotty Jernigan of 3 Circle Church 

 

     PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

 

 

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES: Council Meeting Minutes / December 7, 2015  

  

                                                    Council Work Session Minutes / December 14, 2015  

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING:   Annexation:    Russell  Steiner 

Location:     Property Located Southeast of Interstate 10 and Blakely River 

Present Zoning:  CR, Conservation Resource, Baldwin County District 10, Baldwin  

                            County 

Proposed Zoning: R-1, Low Density Single Family Residential District, City of Daphne      

Recommendation: Unanimous Favorable             

                                                                 

4. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

A. FINANCE COMMITTEE – Fry   

Review minutes / December 14
th
  

 

1.)    Ordinances: 

        a.)  Appropriation of Funds:  Civic Center Roof Drain Repair / Ordinance 2015-75 

 

        b.)  Appropriation of Funds:  Tiaswasee Creek Stream Restoration Project:  City Match for Boardwalks 

              & Sidewalks / Ordinance 2015-76 

 

        c.)  Additional Appropriation of Funds:  Canterbury/Old Pump Plant & Palmetto Court / NRCS/EWP / 

              \ Ordinance 2015-77 

 

        d.)  Additional Appropriation of Funds:  Gator Alley Improvements / Ordinance 2015-78 

 

        e.)  Appropriation of Funds:  Grant Proposal Writing, Consulting and Management Services /  

              Grant Management LLC / Ordinance 2015-79 

 

2.)   Resolutions: 

        a.)   Bid Award:  Gator Alley Improvements / Blade Construction, LLC / Resolution 2015-76 

            

        b.)   Bid Award:  park  Chemicals / SiteOne Landscape Supply / Resolution 2015-77 

 

3.)   Financial Reports: 

 Treasurers Report / November 2015 

 Sales & Use Tax Collections / October 2015 

 Lodging Tax Collections / October 2015 

 

1



  

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                               DECEMBER 21, 2015                                         PAGE   2 

 

 

B. BUILDINGS & PROPERTY  COMMITTEE -  Lake 

a.) Review minutes / December 7
th
  

 

b.) MOTION:  To authorize the Mayor to enter into a contract with Prebble-Rish for the Village Point Park  

                     Preserve Master Plan 

 

c.) MOTION:  To authorize the Mayor to enter into a contract with Hatch Mott McDonald in the amount of  

                    $27,000 for renovations to Fire Station #2  

 

C. PUBLIC SAFETY -  Conaway  

 

D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -  Scott  

 

E. PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – LeJeune        

 

 

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  

    

A. BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENTS  – Adrienne Jones   

 

B. DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY – Conaway  

 

C. INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD – Phillips 

Review Special Called meeting minutes / December 3
rd

   

 

Review Special Called meeting minutes / December 16
th
  

 

D. LIBRARY BOARD – Lake 

 

E. PLANNING COMMISSION – Scott 

 

F. RECREATION BOARD – LeJeune 

Review minutes November 18
th
  

 

G. UTILITY BOARD – Fry 

Review minutes / October 28
th
  

 

6.   MAYOR’S REPORT 

      MOTION:  To authorize the Mayor to renew the five (5) year agreement with Johnson Controls for    

                         maintenance at the Civic Center not to exceed $18,000 
       

7. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

          

8. DEPARTMENT HEAD’S REPORT 

 

9. CITY CLERK’S REPORT 

a.)   ABC License / Red Bar Beverage Catering / 140 – Special Events Retail 

 

10. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION   

 

 

 

 

2



  

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                               DECEMBER 21, 2015                                         PAGE   3 

 

 

 

11. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES: 

 

        RESOLUTIONS: 

a.)  Resolution 2015-76. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Bid Award: Gator Alley Improvements / Blade Construction, LLC 

 

b.)  Resolution 2015-77 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Bid Award:  Park Chemicals / SiteOne Landscape Supply  

 

  

 

        ORDINANCES:  

 

          2ND
   READ     

a.) Ordinance 2015-72. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Appropriating Additional Funds for Natural Resources Conservation 

Services (NRCS) Emergency Watershed Protection for: Canterbury / 

Old Pump Plant Areas and Palmetto Court 

 

b.)  Ordinance 2015-73. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Deep Water Amend Lodging Tax Allocation 

 

 

 

1
ST

 READ 

a.)   Ordinance 2015-74. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Annexation: Russell Steiner / Located Southeast of Interstate 10 and 

                                                                        Blakely River 

 

b.)   Ordinance 2015-75. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Appropriation of Funds: Civic Center Roof Repair 

 

c.    Ordinance 2015-76. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ADEM / 319 Tiawasee Creek Sub-Watershed Management Project 

 

d.)   Ordinance 2015-77. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Appropriation of Additional Funds: NRCS Emergency Watershed Protection  

                                                                        Canterbury / Old Pump Plant Areas / Palmetto Court  

 

e.)   Ordinance 2015-78. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Appropriation of Additional Lodging Tax Funds: TAP: Gator Alley 

                                                             Turnout / Overlook Drainage / Scenic Improvements 

 

f.)    Ordinance 2015-79. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Appropriation of Funds: Grant Proposal Writing, Consulting and  

                                                                          Management Services for All City Grants / Grant Management LLC 

 

g.)    Ordinance 2015-80. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Removing Contingency Regarding Funds to Thomas Hospital 

        

12.    COUNCIL COMMENTS       

13.  ADJOURN 

3



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

CITY COUNCIL: 

COUNCILWOMAN CONAWAY  PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN LAKE    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN FRY    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN LEJEUNE   PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILWOMAN PHILLIPS   PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCIL PRESIDENT RUDICELL  PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

MAYOR: 

MAYOR HAYGOOD    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

CITY CLERK: 

REBECCA HAYES     PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 

JAY ROSS      PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

4



DECEMBER 7. 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e1
 

                                                                                  

1.    CALL TO ORDER: 
There being a quorum present Council President Rudicell called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.       

 

2.    ROLL CALL  
COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:   Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron Scott;  

Robin LeJeune, Angie Phillips 

 

Also present: Mayor Haygood; Melissa Wilt, Assistant City Clerk;  Jay Ross, City Attorney; Kevin Boucher, 

City Attorney; James White, Fire Chief;  Tonja Young, Library Director; Vickie Hinman, HR Director; Richard 

Merchant, Building Official; David McKelroy, Recreation Director; Kelli Kichler, Finance Director/Treasurer;  

Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; Adrienne Jones, Planning Director;  Richard Johnson, Public Works 

Director; David Carpenter, Police Chief; Cynthia Feirman, Carey Technology; Mark Nix, President and CEO 

Infirmary Health; Philip Durant, Chairman of S.E.E.D.S. Board of Directors 

 

Absent: Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk 

 

INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

 Councilman John Lake gave the invocation. 

3.    APPROVE MINUTES:  November 16, 2015 
 The minutes for the November 16, 2015 council meeting stand approve with the correction by Councilwoman 

Phillips to be added to roll call as present.  

 

PRESENTATION: S.E.E.D.S. / Grant Awards 

Philip Durant, Chairman of S.E.E.D.S. Board of Directors, presented S.E.E.D.S Grant Block Awards to the 

principals of each Daphne public school: Daphne High School, Daphne Middle School, W J Carroll 

Intermediate School, Daphne Elementary School and Daphne East Elementary School.   

PUBLIC HEARING: Proposed Redistricting of Voting Districts 

Cynthia Feirman gave a presentation on the process of redistricting including the current and proposed districts 

for the City of Daphne. She explained that based on the 2000 and 2010 US Census; the current City of Daphne 

districts have high population variations between them, with one district having almost half more residents over 

another. The goal of redistricting is to even out the population with a goal of +/- 5% population variance across 

the districts. Her proposed redistricting plan meets this goal.  

 

Council President Rudicell opened the Public Hearing at 6:49pm 

Willie Williams - President Baldwin County Martin Luther King Celebration Committee, claims City has 

been misleading with redistricting; said City did redistricting in 2008, still waiting on statistics. Justice 

Department told City Official you cannot divide Park City community up. He said City did redistrict in 2011 

using estimates, not Census figures; numbers are not adding up. He requested specific data to be received by 

the end of the week for his experts. 

5



DECEMBER 7. 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e2
 

 

Mr. Alec Barnett - President of Baldwin County NAACP, questioned if the Council ever considered asking 

the citizens what they want in redistricting. Council President Rudicell explained the Census is a national 

program. 

 

Council President Rudicell closed Public Hearing at 6:59pm 
 

4.    REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

 A.   FINANCE COMMITTEE – Fry 

The next meeting with be December 14
th

 at 4:30pm 

 

B.   BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE – Lake 

Meeting tonight so minutes will be in next packet 

 

C.   PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Conaway  

The next meeting will be December 21
st
 at 4:30 p.m. 

 

D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE – Scott 

Minutes from November 16
th

 meeting are in packet. The next meeting will be December 21
st
 at 5:30 p.m. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Rudicell to authorize a change in pay schedule for the City Prosecutor.  

Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

E.   PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE – LeJeune 

The minutes from September 8
th

 and October 5
th

 are in the packet for review along with Beautification 

Committee minutes (September 2
nd

 and October 7
th

) and Museum Meeting minutes (September 14
th

). The 

next Public Works meeting will be January 4
th

 after the Buildings and Property Committee meeting. 

 

5.    REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: 

      A.   Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

Application was submitted for first Thursday of January; however, unsure if meeting will happen – will send 

confirmation to Council.  

 

     B.   Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway 

The next meeting will be January 26
th

, 2016 at 5:30 p.m. 

 

    C.   Industrial Development Board – Phillips 

The November 23
rd

 meeting minutes are in the packet. A Special Called work session was honored on 

November 30
th

; the minutes are in the packet. The next meeting is December 28
th

 at 6:00pm.  

 

    D.   Library Board – Lake 

No Report 

 

    

 

6



DECEMBER 7. 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e3
 

 

 E.   Planning Commission – Scott 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Phillips to set a Public Hearing date for January 18, 2016 and to 

approve advertising to consider:  

Revisions to the Land Use and Development Ordinance / Revisions to Olde Towne District Map 

Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

  F.   Utility Board – Fry 

No meeting in December; next meeting will be in January. 

 

6.   MAYOR’S REPORT 

Mayor Haygood mentioned the death of Tom Bertagnolli; he was the first two firefighters hired when created 

municipal fire department in 1990 that served 21 years for the City of Daphne. He had a long struggle with 

illness and saddened by the loss. He was truly loved by all that worked at the City and in the community. 

There is a contract for the Southern Light dark fiber lease agreement in packet on page 36 and would like to 

get a motion to enter into agreement.  

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to authorize Mayor to enter into a lease agreement with Southern 

Light.  Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

Mayor Haygood said the Daphne Tree Lighting was a great success with about 400 people attending. Daphne 

Christmas parade and snow day next Saturday; hope everyone can attend. 

 

7.  CITY ATTORNEY REPORT: 
Mr. Mark Nix, President and CEO of Infirmary Health, is here in regards to TEFRA since there was some 

discussion on plans for emergency room department and annexation during public hearing last meeting. With 

regard to TEFRA, the question Council had was whether approval would affect bank qualified financing and 

any interest rate reductions the City could get to determine their financing, and the answer is no, this will 

have no impact on financing options. Mr. Nix explained this should have no impact on City’s abilities to 

raise money or get bank qualified loans. One reason for TEFRA is refinancing debt on current facilities. Also 

if they do not have TEFRA support from the city, they cannot spend money in the city servicing since it is a 

nonprofit entity. If they do not receive approval, they will not be able to build emergency facility in Daphne.  

 

Council discussed initial questions on City’s financing and annexation.  

 

Mr. Nix stated the only reason they are not looking to annex the property into the City prior to construction is 

due to timing. They have to substantially complete the facility by September 2016, and our annexation 

process would not receive approval until March which is too late for them to start. They are very interested in 

coming into the city and are not trying to avoid paying fees. In regards to traffic, the facility is projected to 

only see (25) patients a day, and will decide whether to transport patient or send home; this will create 

minimal traffic.  
7



DECEMBER 7. 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e4
 

 

8.   DEPARTMENT HEAD COMMENTS: 

James White – Fire Chief – Saddened by the passing Tom Bertagnolli 

Margaret Thigpen – Civic Center Director – Baldwin Holiday Pops Concert, December 8
th

 and Center 

Stage Performance performing Seussical Jr.  

 

Adrienne Jones – Director Community Development – Hired new planner, Jessica Watts, who brings 15 

years of experience from Fort Myers, FL 

 

9.  CITY CLERK REPORT:  

a.)  Events Permit / Apollo’s Mystic Ladies / Mardi Gras / January 29, 2016 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to approve the Events Permit for Apollo’s Mystic Ladies Mardis 

Gras, January 29, 2016.  Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

b.)  Events Permit / Daphmont Community / Community Parade / February 6, 2016 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to approve the Events Permit Daphmont Community Parade 

on February 6, 2016.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

c.)  MOTION:   To Authorize the Mayor to enter into an amended contract with Carey Technologies. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to authorize Mayor to enter into an amended contract with Carey 

Technologies.  Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

10.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Mr. Willie Robinson – 560 Steward Street – Thank council and wished council a very Merry Christmas 

since he will not be at next council meeting. He is in favor of using BP money to purchase property. 

 

Mr. Joe Davis – 30757 Pine Court – Resident of Daphne for 10 years in May. He is receiving messages from 

companies looking for the type of office space that the DISC project would provide; they want a coastal 

presence. He is aware there are recreation, sewer projects, economic development – all of these things are 

things we need to and can do as a city on their own timeline.  

 

Ms. Laurel McMann Anderson - 27799 Moniac Cove – Thinks it is wonderful that Infirmary Health is 

looking to locate here in Daphne; she had a couple of questions: number of stories the building will be and if 

Medicare patients would be eligible to come to free standing ER.  Concerned with the issue of traffic  

 

8



DECEMBER 7. 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e5
 

 

congestion with location of 181 and 90; think the ER is a priority and location is good. She felt the DISC 

project would further compound traffic, and asked to consider another site for this project. 

 

 

11.    RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 
a.)  Resolution 2015-70. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  TEFRA / Infirmary Health System Special Care Facilities 

                                          Financing Authority of Mobile 

 

b.) Resolution 2015-73 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Canterbury & Old Pump Plant Areas Emergency   

                Watershed Protection Project 

 

c.) Resolution 2015-74. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. Emergency Watershed Protection Plan for Palmetto Court 

  

d.) Resolution 2015-75 “Option A”. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Deep Water Horizon Funds Expenditure 

 

e.) Resolution 2015-75 “Option B”. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Deep Water Horizon Funds Expenditure  

 

Resolution 2015-75 “Option C”. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Deep Water Horizon Funds Expenditure  

 

Resolution 2015-70. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  TEFRA / Infirmary Health System Special Care Facilities Financing 

Authority of Mobile  

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to waive the reading of Resolution 2015-70. Seconded by 

Councilman Scott. 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt Resolution 2015-70 Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    Lake, Fry, Scott, LeJeune, Phillips    ABSTAIN Conaway            NAY    None Opposed 

                        

MOTION CARRIED  

 

Resolution 2015-73. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Canterbury & Old Pump Plant Areas Emergency Watershed Protection 

Project  

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Resolution 2015-73.  Seconded by 

Councilman Conaway. 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2015-73.   Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

9



DECEMBER 7. 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e6
 

 

 Resolution 2015-74. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Emergency Watershed Protection Plan for Palmetto Court  

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to waive the reading of Resolution 2015-74. Seconded by 

Councilman Lake. 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to adopt Resolution 2015-74.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

  

Resolution 2015-75 “Option C”.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Deep Water Horizon Funds Expenditure   

MOTION BY Councilwoman Scott to have the District Attorney read Resolution 2015-75 

“Option C”.   Seconded by Councilwoman Phillips. 

 

MOTION CARRIED  

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2015-75 “Option C”.  Seconded by Councilwoman 

Phillips. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to amend Resolution 2015-75 “Option C” to require pre-zoning and 

annexation be approved by the City Council prior to any release of the BP funds to the Industrial 

Development Board. Seconded by Councilwoman Phillips. 

 

After discussion Councilman Fry withdrew his motion. Councilwoman Phillips withdrew her Second. 

 

VOTE ON ORIGINAL MOTION 

 

 

AYE    Fry, Scott, LeJeune, Phillips    NAY    Conaway, Rudicell, Lake 

                                                

MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

ORDINANCES: 

           2
ND

   READ    

a.) Ordinance 2015-69. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Adopting and Enacting Amendments to the 2005 Supplement Code           

                                                                             for the City of Daphne 

 

b.) Ordinance 2015-70. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Appropriation of Funds:  Tallent Lane ADEM Permit Fees 

 

10



DECEMBER 7. 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e7
 

 

Ordinance 2015-69. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Adopting and Enacting Amendments to the 2005 Supplement Code           

                                                                             for the City of Daphne 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Phillips to waive the reading of Ordinance 2015-69. Seconded by 

Councilman Fry. 
 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2015-69. Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

Ordinance 2015-70. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Appropriation of Funds: Tallent Lane ADEM Permit Fees 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinance 2015-70.  

Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 
 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2015-70 

Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

1
ST

 READ 

a.) Ordinance 2015-71. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Establishing District Line for the City of Daphne 

 

b.) Ordinance 2015-72. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Appropriating Additional Funds for Natural Resources   

                                                                      Conservation Services (NRCS) Emergency Watershed   

                                                                      Protection for: Canterbury / Old Pump Plant Areas and Palmetto  

                                                                      Court 

 

c.)  Ordinance 2015-73. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Deep Water Amend Lodging Tax Allocation 

 

ORDINANCES 2015-71 AND 2015-72 AND 2015-73 ARE 1
ST

 READ 

12.    COUNCIL COMMENTS 

Mayor Haygood – Thanked Council for coming together with IDB.  The last special called work session was 

best discussion they have had. The Mayor and Council are supposed to come together and do what is best for 

the City. The IDB wanted to move forward with a project that has the support of the Council. There are 

aspects of this project that are beneficial to the community.  

11



DECEMBER 7. 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e8
 

 

Councilwoman Phillips - Thanked citizens for coming out tonight. Thanked those who have called and 

emailed regarding DISC project. She values everyone’s input. Encourage citizens to stay vigilant and 

involved.  

 

Councilman Scott – said that every parcel in the City of Daphne is subject to be rezoned at any time, no 

zoning is permanent.  He thanked Council for supporting the DISC project. The IDB has been working hard 

and the Governor has approved funds for this project. He thanked Councilman LeJeune and Councilwoman 

Phillips for calling special called meeting for Council to really discuss project.  

 

Councilman Fry – Enjoyed the tree lighting, and reminded everyone the Christmas parade is Saturday, 

December 12
th

. It is the anniversary of Pearl Harbor, and he gave thanks to men and women to serve our 

country. There are two projects this holiday season to support: Toys for Tots sponsored by Marine Core 

League and Round Up Program by Riviera Utilities.   

 

Councilman Lake – The citizens thought the DISC project was put to rest. It is sad that we keep having these 

schizophrenic fits where we change our minds in the middle of things. He still has concerns with DISC 

project.   

 

Council President Rudicell – mentioned that at the December work session meeting they will discuss 

recreation - going over facilities and numbers; need to look at which direction they will go. The January 

work session will they will look at elected official compensation and polling location discussions. At the 

February work session they will be going over employee health insurance.  

 

13.   ADJOURN: 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adjourn Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING ADJOURNED AT 8:22 

P.M. 

 

Respectfully submitted by,                                   Certification of Presiding Officer                     

                                                 

__________________________________  _____________________________   

Melissa Wilt,      Pat Rudicell,     

Assistant City Clerk     Council President 

12



DECEMBER 14, 2015 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

5:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e1
 

   

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron 

Scott; Robin LeJeune; Angie Phillips.  

 

Also present: Mayor Haygood; Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Kevin, Boucher, City Attorney; Richard 

Johnson; Public Works Director; David McKelroy, Recreation Director; Charlie McDavid, 

Recreation; Lawrence Yelding, Recreation Board; Matt Cunningham, Recreation Board; Selena 

Vaughn, Beautification Committee; Victoria Phelps, Beautification Committee; Tomasina Werner, 

Beautification Committee; Matthew Brown, AL State Board of Education; Tim Patton, Volker & 

Associates. 

 

Absent: Jay Ross, City Attorney. 

 

Council President Rudicell called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

Matthew Brown introduced himself and let council know he is at the city’s service for any needs 

regarding help for the Daphne schools.   

 

1. DISCUSS PROPOSAL FOR THE RECREATION FACILITIES 

 

Tim Patton gave a power point presentation on the proposed recreation facilities (attached to these 

minutes.  He mentioned that the Park Planning Team met four times June30th, September 3
rd

, 

October 14
th

 and November 12
th

.  

 

Council discussed which parks they would like to see developed and financing possibilities.  Council 

needs to designate where the three percent (3%) taken from the IDB’s share of the lodging tax will 

go. 

 

Consensus of Council is they would like all three parks utilized and spread out over the city.  The 

recommendation from the Recreation Board was to put the improvements at the Park Drive property.  

 

Council discussed having a special called council meeting to discuss the proposals.   Council 

requested to have bond information at the next Finance Committee meeting. 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING ADJOURNED 

AT 8:37 P.M. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,         Certification of Presiding Officer:  

                                                     

                               

___________________________         _____________________________                                                                                  

Rebecca A. Hayes,          Pat Rudicell,                                                                 

City Clerk       Council President 

13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



City of Daphne
Parks Master Plan Opinions of Probable Cost
12/18/2015

Option A Option B
Lott Park
Site Work $506,000.00 $506,000.00
10 Tennis $918,000.00 $918,000.00
Changing Room $147,000.00 $147,000.00
Pavilion $60,000.00 $60,000.00
Landscape $61,000.00 $61,000.00
Playground $40,000.00 $40,000.00
Bocce $10,000.00 $10,000.00
Lott Park Subtotal $1,742,000.00 $1,742,000.00

Park Drive
Site Work $4,183,000.00
8 Fields $3,339,000.00
Concession Bldg. $955,000.00
Pavilion $92,000.00
Maint. Bldg. $254,000.00
Playground $160,000.00
Splash Pad See Note 1
Boardwalks See Note 2
Landscape $200,000.00
Park Drive Subtotal $9,183,000.00

Trione Park
Site Work $725,000.00 $2,000,000.00
2 MU Fields $692,000.00 $692,000.00
8 Ballfields $0.00 $3,332,000.00
Concession Bldg. $204,000.00 $993,000.00
Pavilion $46,000.00 $92,000.00
Playground $0.00 $160,000.00
Maint. Bldg. $46,000.00 $46,000.00
Landscape $75,000.00 $150,000.00
Basketball $0.00 $0.00
Sand Volleyball $0.00 $0.00
Trione Park Subtotal $1,788,000.00 $7,465,000.00

Subtotal - All Parks $12,713,000.00 $9,207,000.00
x 1.27 $16,145,510.00 $11,692,890.00

Additional Items:
1.   Splash Pad (Incl. 1.27) $381,000.00
2.   Boardwalks (Funding to be pursued through Grants.) $204,000.00
3.   Miracle Baseball Field (Funding to be pursued through Grants & Donations.) $1,000,000.00

33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



 

 

CITY OF DAPHNE 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 
DECEMBER 14, 2015 

4:30 P.M. 
 
I.      CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
The meeting was called to order at 4:30 p.m.  Present were Chairman Randy Fry, Councilwoman Mrs. 
Conaway, Councilwoman Angie Phillips, Councilman Ron Scott, Councilman Pat Rudicell, Councilman John 
Lake, Councilman Robin LeJeune,  Finance Director Kelli Kichler, Senior Accountant Suzânne Henson, Human 
Resource Director Vickie Hinman, Revenue Officer Jamie Smith, Mayor Dane Haygood and City Attorney Kevin 
Boucher. 
 
Also in attendance were, Public Works Director Richard Johnson, Civic Center Director Margaret Thigpen, 
Recreation Director David McKelroy, City Clerk Rebecca Hayes, Community Development Director Adrienne 
Jones, Environmental Program Manager Ashley Campbell, Public Works Deputy Director William Eringman, and 
Mr. Larry Cooke, BZA.  
 

I.      PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 

A. Britton Bonner, Adams &  Reese LLP – Grant Update 
Mr. Britton Bonner reviewed the status of new federal grants that will be available.  Mr. Bonner discussed the 
GOMESA (Gulf of Mexico Energy Security Act of 2006) which is offshore revenues that are split with the State, 
Baldwin County and Mobile County (grant relates to  "Hurricane protection" so monies  could be used for 13 

interchange). Mr. Bonner also discussed the I-10 Bridge grant project and noted the transportation bill was 
passed and there may be some new grant pathways in that legislation. Mr. Rudicell asked about receiving a 
report for monitoring project cost.  Ms. Kichler stated she can prepare a summary report for all grants and she 
could include this report in the Finance Committee packet for future meetings. 
 
Discussion was made on the CDBG Sewer Grant that was not awarded to the City this last year.  Mr. Bonner 
and Ms. Stallman agreed that the City could move forward with the Sewer installation bid.    Mayor Haygood 
discussed a potential grant becoming available the first quarter of 2016 and noted he had approved the 
advertisement to move forward with the bid.  Ms. Stallman stated she would like to re-apply next year for the 
hookups for the areas that are eligible for the CDBG Grant.  Ms. Cara Stallman, Grant Management LLC 
discussed the reason the grant was not awarded was due to private property related issues and noted the City 
is working to resolve those issues and once these are resolved the City could re-apply. 
 
 

II.      BUSINESS LICENSE REPORT 
 

1. Report: New Business Licenses – November, 2015    
The Business Licenses Report was included in the packet. Total business license issued YTD is 4,591 - up 312 
from last year  
 

68   - Total Business License issued in November 2015_  -  up 9 from November 2014 (59  licenses 

issued).  
  
  16  - Renewals 
  48 - New businesses with 4 of those having a physical location in Daphne and 
    4 - Prior year licenses.   
 
Mrs. Smith noted that the Code Enforcement Officer issued 22 warnings, resulting in businesses becoming 
compliant and $2,584.49 in revenue for November 2015.  Mr. Scott asked if the business license report could 
include the number of employees a business employs on the business license report.  Mrs. Smith stated that is 
not a question on the current business license form and noted the 2016 forms had already been printed.   Mrs. 
Smith reviewed the Delinquency report. 

47



 

Finance Minutes.doc   

 

III.    HUMAN RESOURCES BUSINESS 
 

       A.  Update on Human Resources Department Activity 
 Mrs. Vickie Hinman reviewed the Human Resource Report including open position status. 
 

Positions      Status 
Planner (Community Development)   DOH: 12/3/2015 
Police Dispatcher (2)     Pre-employment process 
Public Works Supervisor (Grounds)   Pre-employment process  
Code Enforcement Officer    Reviewing Applications  
Executive Assistant     Reviewing Applications 
Sr. HR Specialist     Supplemental Questionnaires mailed 
Assistant City Clerk     Posting Closes December 15, 2015 
   
Mrs. Hinman reviewed the open positions listed above.  Mrs. Hinman noted that the next Safety committee 
meeting is December 16 @ 10:00 a.m. and she reviewed the upcoming HR projects/meetings:  Long Term 
Disability Roll-Out for employees (Dec. 15, 16, 17) & ACA Compliance Preparation. Mrs. Hinman noted that 
meeting sessions would be held for all employees for the registration/setup for Life and Long Term Disability 
benefits.  Mrs. Hinman reviewed the City’s Overtime report for the first quarter of FY2016 noting that she had 
broken the report out by division as requested. Discussion continued on the overtime report and discussing 
employee insurance benefits at the February or March Finance Committee meeting. 

 

IV. CURRENT BUSINESS 
 

A. Approve previous months minutes 
The previous minutes were approved. 

 
B. Financial Reports 
1. Treasurer’s Report:  November, 2015 

    Mrs. Henson reviewed the Treasurer’s Report and noted:  

 Total Unrestricted Funds - $  10,771,967               

 Increase from Last Year’s Unrestricted Funds – $1,195,759      

 Total Restricted Funds - $8,841,457  

 Total City Funds - $ 19,613,424 

 # of months of Unrestricted cash to cover monthly operating Expenses & Debt Service – 4.9 months 
compared to the previous year -  4.3  months 

Included in the packet are graphs that show that show the balance has increased from the previous year.  
Discussion was made that the Concession Stand fund was closed.  Ms. Kichler noted this fund has ended with a 
negative balance for the last two years.  Mr. McKelroy and Mr. LeJeune discussed that some of the sports 
organizations using the fields are operating the concession stands as a fund raiser and they maintain their own 
inventory.  Mrs. Henson reviewed the Encumbrance report as of 9/30/15 - $200,121.  Mrs. Henson noted some 
of the encumbrances had been spent but the report was presented through 9/30/15 to correspond with the other 
9/30/15 Financial reports. (Encumbrances balance through 11/30/15 - $184,099 – see bottom of Treasurer’s Report). 
   

The Treasurer’s Report as of November, 2015 Total Unrestricted Funds - $10,771,967             
and Total City Funds - $19,613,424 was presented to be filed for audit.  
 

2.  Sales and Use Taxes: October, 2015 
Mrs. Henson reviewed the Sales & Use Tax Reports and Graphs: $1,154,933  was collected for October 2015: 

 YTD Variance over Budget - $ 63,879          

 Percent change from last year’s collections - +5.9%  
 

3.  Lodging Tax Collections,  October, 2015 

Mrs. Henson reviewed the Lodging Tax Collections Report and noted the collections for October 2015 were 
$82,326  which is up $7,745   from October’s 2014’s collections of $ 74,582     .  

48



 

Finance Minutes.doc   

 YTD Variance over Budget:    $5,831           

 Percentage change YTD from last year’s collections:   + 9.4 % 
 
 

 4.  Lodging Tax Fund : Statement of Rev over Exp, November, 2015  
Mrs. Henson reviewed the Lodging Tax Statement of Revenues over Expenditure report for November, 2015.  
Mrs. Henson noted the following balances: 

 Unreserved balance for Bayfront related purchases  - $ 2,094,692         

 Recreation related purchases  -  $ 831,299 

 
5.  Correction/Court Fund Report, October, 2015 

Mrs. Henson reviewed the Correction/ Court Fund Report and reported that no transfers were required for 
October from the court portion of the fund to the corrections for the purchase of inmate meals.   

 Court balance          - $188,647 

 Corrections balance - $   1,482 

 
  6. General Fund Budgetary Comparison Schedule, September 2015  
   7.  General Fund Balance Sheet, September 2015  
   8.  General Fund Statement of Rev Over Exp, September 2015 
           9.  Debt Service Fund Statement of Rev Over Exp, September 2015 
         10.  Debt Service Summary Activity for General Fund through September 2015 
         11.  Debt Service Summary Activity for Enterprise Funds through September 2015  
         12.  Agency Funds Combining Statement of Assets &  Liabilities, September 2015  
         13.  Special Revenue Funds Balance Sheet, September, 2015 
         14. Special Revenue Funds Rev, Exp&Changes  in Fund Balance, September 2015 
         15. Capital Projects Funds Balance Sheet, September 2015  
         16. Capital Projects Funds Statement of Rev Over Exp, September 2015 
         17. Enterprise Funds Statement of Net Position, September, 2015  
         18. Enterprise Funds Stmt of Rev, Exp, & Changes in Net Position, September 2015 
General Fund 
Ms. Kichler reviewed the financial reports for the General Fund.  Ms. Kichler noted the net change in the 
General Fund balance was $1,102,150.   Ms. Kichler noted this balance is added to the Reserves.  Discussion 
continued on the timing difference for Ad Valorem monies received from Baldwin County compared to last year. 
Ms. Kichler explained we can only accrue checks received through 30

th
 of November.  Ms. Kichler noted the 

majority of the net change in General Fund is from vacancies in personnel positions and she referenced the 
totals on the Budgetary Comparison Schedule for the General Fund. 
Debt Service Fund 
Ms. Kichler noted there was no change in debt service payments and debt maturity dates as of 9/30/15 from last 
month’s report.  Ms. Kichler stated that $2,354,669 (principle) and $1,594,162 (interest) was paid in debt 
payments in FY2015 and the balance of debt is $36,619,636 (excluding Capital Leases - $581,574 + Enterprise 
Fund - $415,880).   
Agency & Special Revenue Funds 
Ms. Kichler reviewed the Agency and Special Revenue fund balances.  Ms. Kichler noted that as of 9/30/15 the 
FEMA Rain Event projects $685,893.   
Capital Projects Funds 
Ms. Kichler reviewed the Capital projects funds and noted the Capital Reserve Fund balance as of 9/30/15 is  
$1,676,348.  Ms. Kichler reviewed Capital fund receivables:  ATRIP, Lake Forest Phase III - $332,532, ATRIP, 
Lake Forest Phase IV - $277,352, and Sewer Assessments, Hwy 90 - $805,267.  Ms. Kichler stated the Sewer 
assessments are scheduled to be paid in full in 2019 and noted that one entity owns and owes approximates 
85% of this debt.  Ms. Kichler noted the next sewer bills will go out January 2016. 
Enterprise Funds 
Ms. Kichler reviewed the Enterprise fund reports with YTD losses as follows:   

 Solid Waste (Garbage & Recycling) – ($739,245) 

 Civic Center – ($294,125) 

 Bayfront – ($142,256) 

 

49



 

Finance Minutes.doc   

          19. Bills Paid Reports –  November, 2015 

The Bills Paid Report was presented in the packet. 
 

C. Appropriation Request: (Ordinance) 
 

1. Civic Center Roof Drain Repair - $21,005 
Mr. Fry stated this request for an appropriation to repair the roof drains at the Civic Center was forwarded from 
the Buildings and Property Committee. Mrs. Thigpen noted these drains are 17 years old. 

 

MOTION BY Mr.  Lake to recommend to Council to adopt the Ordinance amending the 
budget to appropriate  $21,005  from the General Fund  for repair of the Civic Center 
roof drains .  Seconded by Mr. Scott.  Motion carried. 

 
2. Tiawasee Creek Stream Restoration Project: ADEM 319 Grant – City match for 

Boardwalks & Sidewalks - $91,845                           
Mrs. Campbell reviewed the project and stated that the response from ADEM  on using grant monies for the 
sidewalks and boardwalks  would not be allowed since they were a “New” addition and not a restoration or 
replacement.  Mrs. Campbell noted that the sidewalks/boardwalks have been a part of the City’s plan and that 
they would connect the school property to Trione Park.  Mrs. Campbell discussed water retention solution for the 
property and a potential property purchase option. 

 

MOTION BY Mr. Scott to adopt an ordinance amending the budget to appropriate 
$91,845  out of the General Fund for the City match for construction of Boardwalks & 
Sidewalks  in the Tiawasee Creek Stream Restoration Projects: ADEM 319 Grant.  
Seconded by Mrs. Conaway.  Motion carried. 
 

3. Canterbury / Old Pump Plant & Palmetto Court – NRCS / EWP – Additional 
Appropriation - $132,230 

 Bid: 2016-C-PALMETTO COURT(approved @ 12-7-15 Council Meeting)   

 Bid: 2016-D-CANTEBURY & Old Pump Plant (approved @ 12-7-15 Council Meeting) 
Mr. Eringman reviewed the projects.  Mr. Johnson discussed changes NRCS has made from the initial 
commitment on these projects.  Discussion continued that this was one of the five (5) Emergency Watershed 
Projects (EWP) in this group and other than the project near Wacky Shrimp which will be done in-house these 
were the last of the EWP projects to be completed.  Discussion was made that this project exceeded original 
estimates (original City Match - $21,757 – Ordinance2015-20) and therefore additional monies (additional City match-

$132,230) need to be appropriated. 

 

MOTION BY Mr. Lake  to recommend to Council to adopt the Ordinance amending the 
budget to appropriate  $132,230  from General Fund for the Canterbury / Old Pump 
Plan & Palmetto Court NRCS projects .  Seconded by Mr.  Rudicell .  Motion carried. 

 
4. Gator Alley Improvements Additional Appropriation - $355,762 

Mr. Johnson reviewed the Gator Alley Improvement project.  Mr. Johnson stated this would be a “turnkey” 
project and discussed what an asset this location is for the City of Daphne.  Mr. Johnson stated this project 
began a couple years ago and the cost have increased in that time.  Discussion continued that this was also a 
project that exceeded the original estimate (original City Match - $92,856 – Ordinance 2013-59) and therefore 
additional monies (additional City match-$355,762)  need to be appropriated.   
 

MOTION BY Mr.  Scott to recommend to Council to adopt the Ordinance amending the 
budget to appropriate  $355,762  from Lodging Tax Fund for the City’s match for the 
Gator Alley Improvements .  Seconded by Mrs.  Conaway.  Motion carried. 

 

 
5. Grant Proposal Writing, Consulting, and Management Services, Grant 

Management LLC - $17,000 

50



 

Finance Minutes.doc   

Ms. Cara Stallman, Grant Management, LLC  presented a management plan to the City in order to expand their 
grant services.  Ms. Stallman noted the proposal is for grant consulting/services for all City grants for an annual 
fee of $42,000.  Ms. Stallman stated this first year the balance owed would be $17,000 since Grant 
Management LLC currently has a grant contract with the City  for the Tiawasee Creek Stream Restoration 
project in the amount of $25,000.  Mrs.  Campbell, Mr. Johnson, and Ms. Kichler all spoke in favor of entering 
into a contract with Grant Management LLC for grant services.      

 

MOTION BY Mr. Scott to recommend to Council to adopt the Ordinance amending the 
budget to appropriate  $17,000  from General Fund for Grant Proposal Writing, 
Consulting, and Management Services.  Seconded by Mr.  Conaway.  Motion carried. 

 

 
D. Bids: (Resolution) 

1.  2016-B-GATOR ALLEY IMPROVEMENTS 
Mr. Johnson and Mr. Perry Jinright, III, Jade Consulting recommending the award to the low bidder, Blade 
Construction, LLC  in the amount of $588,267.40.   
 

MOTION BY Mr.  Scott  to recommend to Council to award the bid 2016-B-GATOR ALLEY 

IMPROVEMENTS in the amount of $588,267.40 as bid to Blade Construction, LLC.  Seconded 
by Mrs. Conaway.  Motion carried. 

 
2. 2016-E-PARKS CHEMICALS 

Mr. McKelroy recommended the bid be awarded to SiteOne Landscape Supply.  Mrs. Henson noted that the 
previous year’s contract was held by John Deere Landscapes, Inc. and SiteOne Landscape Supply purchased 
the company.  Mrs. Henson stated Parks Chemical bid is an annual bid. Mrs. Henson noted the handout of the 
bid minutes showed comparable items, cost were removed if one or the other vendors did not bid on the item or 
the product was not the same.  Discussion was made that the other vendor did not bid on several of the 
fertilizers and their company does sell fertilizer.  
 

MOTION BY Mr.  LeJeune  to recommend to Council to award the 2016-E-PARKS 

CHEMICALS for unit cost as bid .  Seconded by Mrs.  Phillips..  Motion carried. 
 

E.  Bayfront property purchase (forwarded from B&P Meeting) 

Mr. Fry stated there was discussion of purchasing some Bayfront property.  Discussion continued on getting an 
appraisal on the property. 
 

F. Fence at Lott Park    
Mrs. Conaway stated that putting a fence between Lott Park and Little Bethel Baptist Church was discussed at 
the last Buildings & Property Meeting.   Mr. Johnson stated that the graveyard at the church needed some 
maintenance work done and some clearing of trees.  Mr. Johnson noted that some of the areas were unsafe 
and a fence at Lott Park would benefit both properties for safety purposes. Mrs. Conaway stated that the 
Downtown Redevelopment Association (DRA) might assist the church with the cost to place matching fence 
across the front of the church graveyard area.   Discussion continued that if the church had the trees and brush 
cleared and placed on the Right of Way the City could pick it up.  Mr. Johnson stated he had received one quote 
for the fence and was waiting two others.  Discussion continued that this item could be brought back to the 
Finance Committee once all quotes were received. 
 

V. OLD BUSINESS 
A. Mayday Boat Ramp update – Mrs. Ashley Campbell 

Mrs. Campbell presented cost associated with the Mayday Boat ramp.  Mrs. Campbell reviewed the attorney’s 
fees over the last three years and Public Works annual maintenance cost.  Mrs. Campbell presented two 
options:  Option #1 – Keep the boat ramp at an estimated cost of $71,745 + legal cost.  Discussion was made 
concerning ongoing civil issues with northern property owners and the cost to maintain for the next 20 years. 
And Option #2 – Remove the ramp – which would include reimbursing he Department of Conservation and 
Natural Resources - $189,279.14 (20 years remaining on a 25 year lease).  Mr. Fry stated this information would 
be evaluated and discussed at a future meeting. 

51



 

Finance Minutes.doc   

 
VI. ADJOURN   The meeting adjourned at 6:24 p.m.  

 

52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



 

Buildings & Property Committee Meeting 

Monday, December 7, 2015 

4:30 PM 

Daphne City Hall - Executive Conference Room 

Committee Minutes 

Present: Councilman John Lake (Chairman); Councilman Randy Fry; Councilwoman Tommie Conaway; 

Councilman Pat Rudicell; Councilman Ron Scott; Councilman Robin LeJeune; Councilwoman Angie 

Phillips 

Also Present: Melissa Wilt, Assistant City Clerk (recording secretary); Mayor Dane Haygood; Richard 

Johnson, Public Works Director; BJ Eringman, Deputy Director Public Works; Tom Walker, Daphne Fire 

Department; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; Suzanne Henson, Senior Accountant; Adrienne 

Jones, Director Community Development; Ashley Campbell, Environmental Programs Manager; David 

McKelroy, Director Recreation; Dorothy Morrison, Beautification Committee; Selena Vaughn, Village 

Point Foundation; Al Guarisco, Village Point Foundation; Victoria Phelps, Lake Forest Property Owners 

Association; Thomas Jarman; Hatch Mott MacDonald; John Peterson; Hatch Mott MacDonald 

Absent: Kevin Boucher, City Attorney; Rick Whitehead, IT Coordinator 

The meeting was brought to order at 4:31 pm by Chairman John Lake. 

1. Public Participation 

 

Chairman Lake suggested moving Public Participation down on agenda.  

 

2. Approval of Minutes: November 2, 2015 

There were no amendments requested to the minutes. Minutes stand as written. 

 

3. Daphne Central Park Report: Richard Johnson 

 

Richard Johnson stated the disc golf course is being used and the fence is installed. Short term plans are 

to landscape area and long term they are looking at planting trees. They are starting to look at west side 

plans – to continue trails and incorporate fencing. Councilman Scott mentioned how pleased he is with 

the park and sees residents enjoying it.  

 

Councilman Robin LeJuene arrived at 4:35pm 

 

Committee, along with Victoria Phelps, discussed a ribbon cutting event for the park.  

 

Motion by Mr. Scott to set the Daphne Central Park Ribbon Cutting event for Saturday, January 9th, 

2016 at 10:00am.  Seconded by Mr. Fry. 

Motion carried unanimously. 

 

4. Surplus Property: Suzanne Henson, Senior Accountant  

 

Suzanne Henson updated Committee on the surplus property that has sold, bringing in additional 

revenue to the city. Mr. Scott questioned if this revenue could be used for sidewalks.  

 

 

 

 

61



 

5. Civic Center, Bayfront, and CVB report (November): Margaret Thigpen  

 

Margaret Thigpen distributed and discussed her November report. November 2015 revenue for the Civic 

Center totaled $12,177.50 a decrease from November 2014 levels. Year-to-date revenues stood at 

$117,301; below figures listed for FY2014. Ms. Thigpen mentioned she has been meeting with website 

company and things are moving forward. She is also waiting for the pickup report from the Baptist 

convention that was in town. The floors have been completed at Bayfront and the windows are set to be 

installed starting this week.  

She included in her information packet a quote for repairing the drains at the Civic Center. The drains run 

under the roof (in the ceiling) and are starting to leak. They cost more to repair individually than as a 

whole system. Two have recently been repaired and it’s only a matter of time before all need to be repaired 

since the building is around 16 years old. Richard Johnson confirmed Public Works had looked at the roof 

system but not the drainage system. He recommended getting them repaired so not to lead to additional 

problems as a result of leakage.  

 

Motion by Mr. Scott to refer repairing drains at Civic Center to Finance Committee and 

recommended it for $17,490.28 appropriation. Seconded by Ms. Conaway.  

Motion carried unanimously. 

Ms. Thigpen asked about adding the (2) drains recently repaired to the appropriation. Committee 

discussed and decided to keep current appropriation as Ms. Thigpen should have budgeted funds for 

those already repaired.  

 

6. Building Inspection Monthly Reports (November):  Ashley Campbell 

 

Information attached to minutes.  

 

Councilman Scott asked that we hold the next Committee meeting at Bayfront in order to 

see the improvements once windows are complete. Committee agreed.  

 

7. Public Participation  

 

Victoria Phelps thanked everyone for all the support with Daphne Central Park. She is hearing a lot of 

great feedback of residents enjoying it. She suggested, based on feedback, adding kiosks with park rules 

and course layout, trash cans and pet stations. She mentioned the idea of adding a dog park on the east 

side in the future. She confirmed she would provide refreshments at the ribbon cutting and will put it in 

the Lake Forest Newsletter.  

 

Mayor Haygood arrived at 4:50pm 

 

8. Village Point Foundation – Bayfront Properties: Selena Vaughn 

 

Committee discussed Preble-Rish LLC contract in packet that requests a Bayfront Master Plan. Mr. Fry 

questioned whether a motion is needed since it has already been passed by Council; the Mayor should be 

able to sign so project can move forward. Mr. LeJuene questioned project name in contract wanting to 

ensure the City of Daphne is included properly throughout this project. Selena confirmed Village Point 

Foundation is a consultant and supporter but the City is in charge of the project. They discussed how a 

committee will be formed to lead these efforts; a parks planning type team.  

 

Dorothy Morrison arrived at 4:56pm 

 

Mayor Haygood suggested a work session to discuss scope of contract; however, Committee decided to 

move forward and make any changes if needed down the road. 

 

62



Motion by Mr. Scott to refer Preble-Rish contract to City Council for vote. Seconded by Mr. Rudicell. 

Motion carried unanimously. 

Selena Vaughn brought to the Committee’s attention that there is property available for sale for a scenic 

overlook in Daphne. It is for (12) acres and the seller would discount price for it to be in the City.  She 

distributed information to the Council members. The Committee discussed whether the property is a good 

opportunity for the City.  

 

Motion by Mr. Scott to refer property acquisition to Finance Committee once City has a 

comprehensive proposal. Seconded by Ms. Conaway.  

Motion carried unanimously. 

 

9. Gibbs Property (155 Bay View Drive) 

 

Ashley Campbell stated that she has been in contact with Ms. Gibbs and has given her options in regards 

to FEMA; however, the City cannot do anything at this time. Committee discussed the property and 

flooding situation.  

 

10.  Gazebos / May Day Park, Joe Louis Patrick Park and Park City Park: Richard Johnson 

 

Richard Johnson said the gazebos are ordered and will be installed in order of Park City, Joe Lewis and 

May Day. City can order bigger gazebos in the future and move current gazebos to other areas in the City, 

including Daphne Central Park.  

 

11.  Any Other Building & Property Business 

 

Richard Johnson distributed a contract from Hatch Mott MacDonald for the renovations at Fire Station 

#2. The Committee discussed repairs needed; Richard Johnson mentioned the money has been 

appropriated. Mr. Scott requested the signage to be similar of that to Fire Station #3. Mr. LeJeune 

brought up the point of looking at building a new fire station further south which has been discussed, 

instead of spending funds to repair Fire Station #2. Committee discussed and agreed to move forward 

with repairs at Fire Station #2.  

 

Motion by Ms. Phillips for Mayor to enter into contract with Hatch Mott MacDonald for $27,000 for 

the renovations at Fire Station #2. Seconded by Mr. Fry.  

Motion carried unanimously. 

 

12.  Little Bethel Baptist Church Historic Cemetery 

 

Ms. Conaway told the Committee that the Little Bethel Baptist Church attended the Downtown 

Redevelopment Authority meeting and submitted an application for a mini grant to help get the cemetery 

cleaned up and repaired. There are many trees that need to be removed that are growing into the graves. A 

fence needs to be put up for security and protection. Dorothy Morrison said she has made calls to local 

Boy Scout groups to remove dead limbs and debris. Committee discussed if the City can spend funds on 

this type of project. Richard Johnson stated to his knowledge if deemed a benefit to the public, Council 

can spend money even if it is private property. Councilman Lake asked Mr. Johnson to confirm legality on 

how the City can help improve the cemetery and bring recommendations to next meeting.  

 

With no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 5:35pm by Chairman 

Lake. 

Next meeting will be held Monday, January 4th at 4:30pm at Bayfront Pavilion.  

63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



CITY OF DAPHNE, AL  

SPECIAL CALLED 

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD MEETING  

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL  

DECEMBER 3, 2015 

6:00 P.M.  

 

                                        Page 1 of 1 

 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

There being a quorum present the chairman called the meeting to order at 12:07 p.m. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT – Toni Fassbender; Doug Bailey; John Cox Denis Kearney, III; Pokey Miller.  

 

Absent:  Dan Romanchuk. 

 

Also present – Councilwoman Angie Phillips. 

 

 

3.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

No one spoke. 

 

4.   OLD BUSINESS 

      1.)  Discuss DISC Project 

 

MOTION BY Denis Kearney to return $426,768.26 to the Alabama Emergency Management Agency.  

The IDB will retain $15,000 for the impact study, which the AL EMA said they would pay.  Seconded 

by John Cox. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

10.  ADJOURN 

 

MOTION BY John Cox to adjourn.  Seconded by Doug Bailey. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

The board adjourned at 1:35 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

         

Submitted by:      Certification of Presiding Officer: 

 

 

______________________________   ____________________________ 

Rebecca Hayes, Secretary    Toni Fassbender, Chairman 

72



73



74



CITY OF DAPHNE, AL 

SPECIAL CALLED  

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD MEETING  

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL  

DECEMBER 16, 2015 

6:00 P.M.  

 

                                        Page 1 of 2 

 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

There being a quorum present the chairman called the meeting to order at 12:05 p.m. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT – Toni Fassbender; Doug Bailey; John Cox (arrived at 12:15 p.m.) Denis Kearney; 

Dan Romanchuk. 

 

Absent:  Pokey Miller. 

 

Also present – Rebecca Hayes, recording secretary; Lee Lawson; Joe Davis; Chris Elliot (arrived at12:10 pm.); 

Mayor Dane Haygood (arrived at 12:30 p.m.) 

 

 

3.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

No one spoke. 

 

4.   DISCUSS EXTENSION OF OPTION FOR THE DISC PROPERTY 

 

MOTION BY Doug Bailey to approve appropriating $10,000 to extend the option on the property 

located at Highway 181 and Champions Way which will be applied to the purchase price if the IDB 

purchases the property, and if the IDB can’t purchase the property the money is forfeited.  Seconded by 

Denis Kearney. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

5.    TREASURERS REPORT:  NOVEMBER 2015 

 

Cash Balance October 31, 2015:     $937,399.99 

 

MOTION BY Denis Kearney to accept the Treasurers report with a balance of 

$937,399.99.  Seconded by Doug Bailey. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

10.  ADJOURN 

 

MOTION BY Denis Kearney to adjourn.  Seconded by Dan Romanchuk. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

The board adjourned at 12:50 p.m. 

 

 

 

75



CITY OF DAPHNE, AL 

SPECIAL CALLED  

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD MEETING  

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL  

DECEMBER 16, 2015 

6:00 P.M.  

 

                                        Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 

         

Submitted by:      Certification of Presiding Officer: 

 

 

______________________________   ____________________________ 

Rebecca Hayes, Secretary    Toni Fassbender, Chairman 

76



77



City of Daphne Recreation Board 
2605 Hwy 98 

Daphne, AL. 36526 
November 18, 2015 

 
 

Members Present:   David Dueitt, Lisa O’Hara, Frank Pierce and Kit Smith 
 
Advisory Staff:   Glenn Vickery and David McKelroy 
 
Guest:   Tim Patton (Volkert) 
 
Members Absent:   Rick Cleveland, Matt Cunningham and Lawrence Yelding 
 
Call to Order 
Meeting was called to order at 6:40pm. 
 
Review and Approval of Minutes 
Motion was made by Kit Smith and seconded by Frank Pierce to approve the September 9, 2015 
minutes.  Motion passed. 
 
Program Reports 
Information was provided regarding programs, youth basketball, Christmas Parade and senior 
programs. 
 
Old / New Business 
 
 Reappointment of Board Members     The terms of Board Members Rick Clevleand, 
 David Dueitt and Lawrence Yelding have expired.  All three have expressed a desire to 
 remain members of the Daphne Recreation Board.  Motion was made by Frank Pierce 
 and seconded by Kit Smith to recommend reappointment.  Motion passed. 
 
 Splash Pad – Trione Sports Complex     Plans were presented to the board concerning 
 the possibility of a Splash Pad at Trione in conjunction with the Tiawasee Creek 
 Management Plan and grant. 
 
 New Facilities     Conceptual drawing and cost estimates were presented to the board by 
 Tim Patton of Volkert.  The Daphne Recreation Board recommends that baseball and 
 softball facilities be built at Park Dr property, tennis at Lott Park and multi-purpose fields 
 (soccer, football, lacrosse) be located at Trione. 
 
 
 
 

78



Comments from Director  
  
 New flooring will be installed at the Recreation Center over Christmas Holiday. 
  
  Fitness equipment is also in the works to be replaced over a period of 4 years. 
 
 
Adjourn 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:40pm.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

79



2016 TRIONE SPORTS COMPLEX SCHEDULE 
 

 
Jan 2  NSA – Men’s Softball 
 9  NSA – Men’s Softball 
 23  Strike Soccer – 3v3 
 30  High School Soccer Jamboree 
 
Feb 6  NSA – Men’s Softball 
 12-13  Southern Shootout – High School Soccer     
 20  LA Lacrosse  
 27-28  Strike Soccer 
 
Mar 5-6  USSSA Girl’s Softball 
 10-12  Daphne HS Softball – Jubilee Shootout 
 18-19  McGill’s Girl’s Soccer 
 26  Strike Soccer 
 
Apr 2-3  USSSA Girl’s Softball 
 8-9  Daphne HS Softball JV Tournament 
 9  Strike Playday 
 16-17  Nation’s Baseball 
 23-24  LA Lacrosse 
 23-24  USFA Girl’s Softball 
 30-1  USSSA Girl’s Softball 
 30-1  Fairhope Spring Soccer 
 
May 14-15  USSSA Girl’s Softball 
 21-22  Nation’s Baseball 
 28-29  USFA Girl’s Softball 
 
June 4-5  USSSA Girl’s Softball 
 11  DGSA All-Star Softball 
 18-19  USFA Girl’s Softball 
 24-25  Daphne 7 on 7 Football 
 25-26  USSSA Girl’s Softball 
 
July  2  NSA Men’s Softball 
 9  NSA Men’s Softball 
 30  NSA Men’s Softball 
 
 
 

80



Aug 6  NSA Men’s Softball 
 20  NSA Men’s Softball  
 27-28  USSSA Girl’s Softball 
 
Sept 3-4  Ranger Soccer        
 10-11  USSSA Girl’s Softball 
 
Oct  8-9  USSSA Girl’s Softball 
 22-23  USSSA Girl’s Softball 
 
Nov  5  DGSA Fall All-Star Softball 
 
 
 
 
 

81



82



83



84



85



RESOLUTION 2015-76 
 

  2016-B-GATOR ALLEY IMPROVEMENTS 
 FEDERAL AID PROJECT NO. STPTE-TA13(930). 

  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne is required under section 39-1-1(E) of the Code of Alabama 
to secure competitive bids for public works contracts in excess of $ 50,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne acknowledges that GATOR ALLEY IMPROVEMENTS will 
exceed $50,000; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne did receive and review bids for the GATOR ALLEY 
IMPROVEMENTS and has determined that the bid as presented is reasonable (Construction-

$588,267.40 + CE&I-$76,571.04  + Land-$103,855.91 = $768,694.35 Total project cost); and 
 
WHEREAS,  Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) Grant will reimburse $320,075 of 
project cost for the GATOR ALLEY IMPROVEMENTS; and  
 
WHEREAS, staff recommends the bid for GATOR ALLEY IMPROVEMENTS be awarded to 
Blade Construction, LLC . 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, THAT THE 
MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby accept the bid from                                                
Blade Construction, LLC   in the amount of $588,267.40   as specified in BID 
SPECIFICATION NO. 2016-B-GATOR ALLEY IMPROVEMENTS (STPTE-TA13(930).   
 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, this         day of                      , 2015. 
 

 
                                                                                                                                                                                              

                                                                      _________________________________ 
                                                                       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
                                                                            
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



RESOLUTION NO.  2015-77 
 

2016-E-PARK CHEMICALS 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code 
of Alabama to secure competitive bids for items in excess of $15,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne acknowledges that the cost for the PARK 
CHEMICALS will exceed this amount; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed the bids for the PARK CHEMICALS and 
determined that the bid as presented is reasonable; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff recommends the bid for the PARK CHEMICALS be awarded to 
SiteOne Landscape Supply. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, 
THAT THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby 
accept the bid of SiteOne Landscape Supply for unit cost listed as attached 
herein and made a part hereof for BID SPECIFICATION NO. 2016-E-PARK 
CHEMICALS. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS                  day of                  , 2015 
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                  

_____________________________ 
                                                                       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
         
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

 
 

101



102



103



104



105



106



107



ORDINANCE 2015-72 

  
Additional Appropriating Funds for Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) 
Emergency Watershed Protection (EWP) Contract No. 68-4101-15-0015 for: 
CANTERBURY (DAP #14-009) / OLD PUMP PLANT AREAS (DAP #14-005) and PALMETTO 

COURT (DAP 14-007) 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2015-55 approved adopted the Fiscal Year 2016 Budget on October 5, 
2015; and 

 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2016 budget, the City Council has 
determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and made a part of the 
Fiscal Year 2016 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne received 16.5" of rainfall for the period of April 29-30, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, as a result of such heavy rains, watersheds and their drainage systems located 
within the City of Daphne sustained severe damage and require emergency repairs in order to 
prevent further impacts to the City's watersheds; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne has made application with the NRCS through their EWP 
program for 75% reimbursement of expenses incurred for such watershed emergency repairs 
as described below; and 
 
WHEREAS, the EWP Projects were selected by NRCS for funding with the City of Daphne as 
the “Sponsor”. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that: 

1. The City Council of the City of Daphne deems these projects key to the recovery efforts 
associated with this rain event and the repair of these property’s watershed issues is 
necessary to preserve the health, safety, and convenience of the public. 

2. Fiscal Year 2015 Budget was amended by Ordinance 2015-20 to include an 
appropriation from the General Fund in the amount of  

 $14,601.50 for the estimated City match for Canterbury & Old Pump Plant areas  

 $ 7,155.00 for the estimated City match for Palmetto Court. 
3. Bids have been received with project cost as listed below requiring an additional 

appropriation in the amount of $ 132,229.73 to complete the five approved EWP 
projects: 

 Canterbury & Old Pump Plant (Bid amount-$159,939) - additional appropriation 
needed -  $ 78,361.70_   

 Palmetto Court (Bid amount-$68,862.50) - additional appropriation needed 
$53,868.03. 

4. The Environmental Program Manager/Public Works Director or the Mayor is authorized 
to coordinate application with the NRCS for the reimbursement of such funds and to sign 
and execute all documents associated with the described projects. 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, this _____ 
day of _______________, 2015. 
 
 
              
Attest:                                        Dane Haygood, Mayor 
 
      
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

108



 

CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-73 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND LODGING TAX ALLOCATAION 

  

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne has determined that a change in the 

allocation amounts for the Lodging tax is necessary to effectuate and implement public policy 

regarding economic development within the City of Daphne;  and  

 

WHEREAS, the Industrial Development Board agrees to this change in allocation; and  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA: 

 

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT 

Section 9(a) of the Lodging Tax Ordinance 2014-06 shall be amended to read as follows: 

(a) Ten percent (10%) shall be paid at least quarterly and used for the purpose of 

providing funding to the Industrial Development Board for the action items, 

implementation of strategies, and tactics included in the then current Strategic 

Economic Development Plan as approved and adopted by the  City Council. 

(b)  

SECTION 2. SEVERABILITY 

  If any section, subsection, clause, provision or part of this Ordinance shall be 

held to be invalid or unconstitutional in a court of competent jurisdiction, such holding or holding 

shall not affect any other section, subsection, clause, provision or part of this Ordinance which is 

in itself and of itself valid and constitutional. 

 

SECTION 3. EFFECTIVE DATE 

  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force effective upon proper passage 

and execution, subject to publication as required by law. 

 

SECTION 4. REPEALER 

  All other City Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict with the provision of this 

Ordinance, in so far as they conflict, are hereby repealed. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA on this the ____ day of _______________, 2015. 

 

CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

 

 

________________________________                                           

 DANE HAYGOOD, MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________________                                                                     

REBECCA A. HAYES, CITY CLERK 

  

109



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-74 

 

FOR THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN PROPERTY INTO THE CORPORATE 

LIMITS  

OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

 

Russell Steiner 

Property Located Southeast of Interstate 10 and Blakely River 

(67 Acres More or Less) 
  

 BE IT ORDAINED BY CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

WHEREAS, on the 28
th
 day of September, 2015, the owner of all real property hereinafter described, did 

file with the City Clerk a petition asking that the said tracts or parcels of land be annexed into and become 

part of the City of Daphne, Alabama; and 

 

WHEREAS, said petition did contain the signatures of all owners of the described territory and a 

map of said property showing its relationship to the corporate limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, all of such property is located and contained within an area contiguous to the corporate 

limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama and does not lie within the corporate limits or police 

jurisdiction of any other municipality; and, 

 

WHEREAS, said petition contains an accurate description of the property or territory proposed to be 

annexed together with a map of said property showing its relationship to the corporate limits of the 

City of Daphne; and, 

 

WHEREAS, said petition was presented to the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne at a 

special called meeting on November 5, 2015 and the Commission set forth an unanimous favorable 

recommendation for the City Council to consider said request for annexation, and said property shall 

be zoned as follows:  R-1, Low Density Single Family Residential District; and, 

 

WHEREAS, after proper publication, a public hearing was held by the City Council on December 

21, 2015 concerning the petition for annexation; and, 

  

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama has determined that it is in the best 

interest of said City that the property described in Section 2 hereof be annexed to the corporate limits 

of the City of Daphne, and that all the requirements of Sections 11-42-21 through 11-42-24, Code of 

Alabama, 1975, as amended have been complied with by said Petitioner. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, as follows: 

 

  SECTION 1: CONSENT TO ANNEXATION.  
The City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama finds that and declares as the legislative body of the 

City of Daphne, Alabama that it is in the best interest of the citizens of the City of Daphne, Alabama and 

the citizens of the affected area, to bring the territory described in Section Two of this Ordinance into the 

City of Daphne, Alabama, and it did further determine that all legal requirements for annexing said real 

property have been met pursuant to Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-24, et seq., Code of Alabama, 1975; 

effective on publication as required by Section 11-42-21, Code of Alabama 1975, as amended. 

 
 

110



 

ORDINANCE 2015-74                   ANNEXATION: STEINER PROPERTY                 PAGE   2 

  

 

SECTION 2: DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY.  
The boundary lines of the City of Daphne, Alabama, be, and the same are hereby altered or 

rearranged so as to include all the territory hereto before encompassed by the corporate limits of the 

City of Daphne, Alabama and in addition thereto the following described property, to-wit: 
 

“Exhibit A” 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  

 

PARCEL: 

 

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 31, TOWNSHIP 4 

SOUTH, AT THE DIVISION OF RANGE 1 AND 2 EAST (THE POINT OF 

COMMENCEMENT); THENCE RUN WESTERLY ALONG THE SOUTH MARGIN 

OF THE INTERSTATE 10 RIGHT-OF-WAY ±1360 FEET TO THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING (P.O.B.); THENCE RUN WESTERLY ALONG THE SOUTH MARGIN 

OF THE INTERSTATE 10 RIGHT-OF-WAY ±1320 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE 

RUN SOUTHWARDLY ALONG THE SHORELINE MARGIN OF THE BLAKELEY 

RIVER ±3850 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE RUN EAST ±1545 FEET TO A POINT; 

THENCE RUN NORTH AND EASTWARDLY (MEANDERING) ALONG THE 

SHORELINE MARGIN OF D’OLIVE BAY TO A POINT; THENCE RUN 

NORTHERLY ±410 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING,  CONTAINING 67 

ACRES, MORE OR LESS, AND LYING WITHIN SECTION 24, TOWNSHIP 4 

SOUTH, RANGE 1 EAST, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA 

 

 SECTION 3: MAP OF PROPERTY.  
The property hereby annexed into the City of Daphne, Alabama is set forth and described in Exhibit “A” 

and attached hereto a map of the property (Exhibit “B”) showing its relationship to the corporate limits of 

the municipality of the City of Daphne and made a part of this ordinance. 

 

 SECTION 4: PUBLICATION.  

This Ordinance shall be published as required by Section 11-42-21, Code of Alabama, 1975, as 

amended, and the property described herein shall be annexed to the corporate limits of the City of 

Daphne, Alabama, upon such publication. 

 

  SECTION 5: PROBATE COURT.   
A description of the property described in this Ordinance shall be filed in the Office of the Judge of 

Probate of Baldwin County, Alabama, as required by Section 11-42-21, Code of Alabama, 1975, as 

amended.  
 

 ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA on this            day of                          , 2015. 

 

        

       _____________________________                                                                                                                                                       

       Dane Haygood 

       Mayor 
        

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes 

City Clerk 

111



 
RUSSELL T. STEINER 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

 

– LAND DONATION 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  

 

PARCEL: 

 

ALL THAT LAND DESCRIBED BY BALDWIN COUNTY TAX MAPS AS PARCEL 

IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (PID): 05-31-07-36-0-000-001.000, PROPERTY IDENTIFICATION 

NUMBER (PPIN) 046012, 67 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, AND LYING WITHIN SECTION 24, 

TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 1 EAST, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA, MORE SPECIFICALLY 

DESCRIBED AS: 

 

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 31, TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, AT THE 

DIVISION OF RANGE 1 AND 2 EAST (THE POINT OF COMMENCEMENT); THENCE RUN 

WESTERLY ALONG THE SOUTH MARGIN OF THE INTERSTATE 10 RIGHT-OF-WAY ±1360 

FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING (P.O.B.); THENCE RUN WESTERLY ALONG THE SOUTH 

MARGIN OF THE INTERSTATE 10 RIGHT-OF-WAY ±1320 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE RUN 

SOUTHWARDLY ALONG THE SHORELINE MARGIN OF THE BLAKELEY RIVER ±3850 FEET 

TO A POINT; THENCE RUN EAST ±1545 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE RUN NORTH AND 

EASTWARDLY (MEANDERING) ALONG THE SHORELINE MARGIN OF D’OLIVE BAY TO A 

POINT; THENCE RUN NORTHERLY ±410 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING,  CONTAINING 

67 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, AND LYING WITHIN SECTION 24, TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 1 

EAST, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA 

 

 

112



0 300 600150
FeetI

SUBJECT
PROBERTY

BLAKELEY
RIVER 

INTERSTATE 10

D'OLIVE
BAY

EXHIBIT "B"

113



ORDINANCE 2015-75  
 
 

Civic Center Roof Repairs Appropriation 
 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2015-55 approved adopted the Fiscal Year 2016 Budget on 
October 5, 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2016 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2016 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, some repairs ($3,515) on the Civic Center roof drains have been done 
but additional repairs ($17,490) are needed to maintain and protect the existing roof 
structure. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds in the amount of $ 21,005 from the General Fund are hereby 
appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2010 budget for the repair and 
maintenance of the Civic Center Roof. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, this                day of                                 , 2015. 
 
 
     

_________________________________ 
                                                                       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 
 

114



115



Ordinance 2015-76 
ALABAMA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT (ADEM) 

319 Tiawasee Creek Sub-watershed Management Project (FY 15) 
 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 2015-55 approved adopted the Fiscal Year 2016 Budget on 
October 5, 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2016 budget, the City Council 
has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and made 
a part of the Fiscal Year 2016 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the coastal Alabama is blessed with estuaries that support both fresh and 
saltwater species and serve as nursery habitat for many commercially and recreationally 
important fish and shellfish; and 

WHEREAS, the Tensaw Appalache watershed,  located in Baldwin County, AL is within 
the Mobile Bay estuary and includes the sub-watersheds of D'Olive Creek, Tiawasee 
Creek and Joes Branch; and 

WHEREAS, the Watershed Management Plan: D'Olive Creek, Tiawasee Creek, and 
Joe's Branch Watersheds was published in 2010 to guide restoration activities in areas 
of environmental degradation within the sub-watersheds of D’Olive Creek, Tiawasee 
Creek and Joe's Branch; and 

WHEREAS, this plan recommends and identifies areas for stabilizing of stream 
segments and improving stormwater management in the Tiawasee sub-watershed; and 

WHEREAS, the City’s goal is to support environmental endeavors which will improve 
water quality and lessen the potential for impacts to the City’s watersheds which are part 
the greater Mobile Bay Watershed. 
 
WHEREAS, Resolution 2015-06 approved the initial application process requiring no cash 
match from the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, ADEM during the application review process requested that the City be 
responsible for the boardwalks and sidewalks due to the fact that they do not reduce the 
pollutant of concern or sediment; and 
 
WHEREAS, the construction of these boardwalks and sidewalks have been a part of the 
City’s plan to allow more connectivity to the Daphne Trione Sports Complex; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that: 

1. The City Council of the City of Daphne deems the ADEM 319 Tiawasee Creek 
Sub-watershed Management Project an important component to the Tiawasee 
Creek Restoration and approves the following: 
 
●Grant total of $994,452.00 with the Federal share being $596,671.00; City 
share being in-kind labor of $305,936.25 and cash appropriation of  $91, 844.75 
from the General Fund for the grant cooperative agreement.  
 

 

116



ORDINANCE 2015-76        TIAWASEE CREEK STREAM RESTORATION             PAGE   2 

 
2. The Environmental Program Manager/Public Works Director or the Mayor is 

authorized to manage the grant and coordinate with ADEM for the 
reimbursement of such funds and to sign and execute all documents associated 
with the described projects. 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, this 
_____ day of _______________, 2015. 
 
 
             
Attest:                                        Dane Haygood, Mayor 
 
      
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

117



 
 
Appropriation Requested 
Porous Sidewalks 212 LF $50.00/LF         $10,615 75% Materials= $ 6,899.75 
Educational Boardwalk   800 LF $118/LF   $94,400 75% Materials= $70,800.00 
Basin Acquisition & Retrofit                 $28,429 50% Materials=$14,145.00 
 
Total Request  $91,844.75 
 

Table 3:Tiawasee Creek Sub-Watershed 319 Watershed Management Project (HUC 03160204-0505) 

 

Federal 

Non-Federal 40% 

Match 
Non-Federal 

Total Match Source 

1.  Personnel/Salaries: 

Project Lead (0.25 FTE) Admin. 

 

$13,000 

 

$13,000 

Project Lead, Fringe @ 31% 

 

$4,030 

 

$4,030 

Project Contact (0.15 FTE) Admin. 

 

$10,500 

 

$10,500 

Project Contact, Fringe @ 31% 

 

$3,255 

 

$3,255 

Admin/Management (10% Max) 

SUBTOTAL: 

 

$30,785 City Of Daphne $30,785 

 
2.  Supplies: 

Educational Workshops and Supplies $1900 $613 
 

$2,513 

Educational Signage $7,500 $0 

 

$7,500 

Supplies SUBTOTAL: $9,400 $613 City of Daphne $10,013 

 3.  BMPs: 

See Table 4 for BMP Cost Analysis 

BMP SUBTOTAL: $505,337 $366,396 City of Daphne $871,720 

 
4.  Services 

A) Education and Outreach $25,000 

  

$24,000 

B) Technical Assistance/Project Design 

Subcontract with Engineering Firm $57,934 
  

$57,934 

Service SUBTOTAL: $82,934 $0 

 

$82,934 

 
Total Budget $596,671 $397,781 

 

$994,452 

 

Table 4:Tiawasee Creek Sub-Watershed 319 Watershed Management Project (HUC 03160204-0505) 

Practice 

Number Item Description Unit 

Unit 

Federal 

Non 

Federal Total Cost 

1 

Constructed 

Wetlands 65,000 sf $1.75/sf $82,090 $31,660 $113,750 

2 

Basin Acquisition 

& Retro-fit 1 $49,616 $21,187 $28,429 $49,616 

3 Porous Sidewalks 212 LF $50.00/LF $0 $10,615 $10,600 

4 

Educational 

Boardwalk 800 LF $118/LF $0 $94,400 $94,400 

5 

Bio-retention 

Areas 4 $10,000/Area $30,000 $10,000 $40,000 

6 Porous Pavers 2389 $104.00/SY $171,666 $61,292 $232,960 

7 

Wetland 

Restoration 1 $30,394 $20,394 $10,000 $30,394 

118



8 Stream Restoration 1 $300,000 $180,000 $120,000 $300,000 

Total 

   

$505,337 $366,383 $871,720 

 

  

 

119



120



121



122



ORDINANCE 2015-77 
  

Additional Appropriating Funds for Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) 
Emergency Watershed Protection (EWP) Contract No. 68-4101-15-0015 for: 
CANTERBURY (DAP #14-009) / OLD PUMP PLANT AREAS (DAP #14-005) and PALMETTO 

COURT (DAP 14-007) 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2015-55 approved adopted the Fiscal Year 2016 Budget on October 5, 
2015; and 

 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2016 budget, the City Council has 
determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and made a part of the 
Fiscal Year 2016 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne received 16.5" of rainfall for the period of April 29-30, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, as a result of such heavy rains, watersheds and their drainage systems located 
within the City of Daphne sustained severe damage and require emergency repairs in order to 
prevent further impacts to the City's watersheds; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne has made application with the NRCS through their EWP 
program for 75% reimbursement of expenses incurred for such watershed emergency repairs 
as described below; and 
 
WHEREAS, the EWP Projects were selected by NRCS for funding with the City of Daphne as 
the “Sponsor”. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that: 

1. The City Council of the City of Daphne deems these projects key to the recovery efforts 
associated with this rain event and the repair of these property’s watershed issues is 
necessary to preserve the health, safety, and convenience of the public. 

2. Fiscal Year 2015 Budget was amended by Ordinance 2015-20 to include an 
appropriation from the General Fund in the amount of  

 $14,601.50 for the estimated City match for Canterbury & Old Pump Plant areas  

 $ 7,155.00 for the estimated City match for Palmetto Court. 
3. Bids have been received with project cost as listed below requiring an additional 

appropriation in the amount of $ 132,229.73  from the General Fund to complete 
the five approved EWP projects: 

 Canterbury & Old Pump Plant (Bid amount-$159,939) - additional appropriation 
needed -  $ 78,361.70_   

 Palmetto Court (Bid amount-$68,862.50) - additional appropriation needed 
$53,868.03. 

4. The Environmental Program Manager/Public Works Director or the Mayor is authorized 
to coordinate application with the NRCS for the reimbursement of such funds and to sign 
and execute all documents associated with the described projects. 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, this _____ 
day of _______________, 2015. 
 
              
Attest:                                        Dane Haygood, Mayor 
 
      
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

123



124



125



126



127



128



ORDINANCE 2015-78 
  

Lodging Tax Additional Appropriation TAP:  Gator Alley - 
Turnout/Overlook/Drainage/Scenic Improvements 

FEDERAL AID PROJECT NO. STPTE-TA13(930) 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2015-55 approved adopted the Fiscal Year 2016 Budget on 
October 5, 2015; and 

 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2016 budget, the City Council 
has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and made 
a part of the Fiscal Year 2016 budget; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has been awarded the new Transportation Alternatives 

Program (TAP) Grant through the Alabama Department of Transportation (ALDOT) 

in the amount of $320,075.46 with an 80/20 cost share ration; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Transportation Enhancement (TE) Program funds may be used to 

correct ADA deficiencies associated with existing pedestrian infrastructure; and 
 
WHEREAS, funds in the amount of $92,857 were appropriated through 
Ordinance 2013-59 for the Gator Alley improvement project; and 
 
WHEREAS, Bids received (total  project cost $768,694) were higher than estimated 
(estimated total project cost $409,005) requiring an additional appropriation in the 
amount of $ 355,762 to complete the Gator Alley Improvement project. 
 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 

Alabama, that  
1. Funds in the amount of $ 355,762 from the Lodging Tax Fund are appropriated 

and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2016 budget for the City’s 20% match for the 
project herein described.   

2. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute any and all documents required in order 

for the City of Daphne to participate in such project. 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne, 

Alabama, this                         day of                              , 2015. 
        
   
                                                                    ________________________________ 
              Dane Haygood, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

129



ORDINANCE 2015-79 
 

APPROPRIATIONN FOR: GRANT PROPOSAL WRITING, CONSULTING, and 
MANAGEMENT SERVICES FOR ALL CITY GRANTS:  

GRANT MANAGEMENT LLC 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2015-55 approved adopted the Fiscal Year 2016 Budget on 
October 5, 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2016 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2016 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, with the growth of the City more grants are applied for each year; and 
 
 WHEREAS, grant management services are needed to ensure compliance with 
grant requirements and to enhance the opportunity of grant awards; and 
 
WHEREAS, a proposal for these grant management/consulting services from Grant 
Management LLC in the amount of $42,000/year has been reviewed and 
recommended by staff; and 
 
WHEREAS, appropriation in the amount of $25,000 for the procurement of a grant 
manger to assist with its CIAP-NFWF grant project was approved in Ordinance 
2015-05, and 
 
WHEREAS, Grant Management LLC has agreed to include the $25,000 as part of 
the $42,000 annual fee for FY2016 leaving a balance of $17,000 . 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that  
 

1. the Fiscal Year 2016 Budget is hereby amended to include an additional 
General Fund appropriation in the amount of $17,000  for the procurement of 
the grant management/consulting services from Grant Management LLC  to 
assist with all City related grants.   

2. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute all agreements required for these 
grant management/consulting services. 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this ______ day of ____________, 2015. 
        
                                        
                                                           _________________________________ 
                                                                        Dane Haygood, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

130



1 
 

 

7525 Assunta Court, Suites A & B 

PO Box 1512 

Fairhope, AL 36532 
 

CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES 

This Contract for Professional Services (“Contract”) is made and entered into by and between the 

City of Daphne (hereinafter collectively “Local Government”) and Grant Management, LLC 

(hereinafter collectively “Consultant”). 

WITNESSETH: 

Whereas, the Local Government has expressed the need for a consultant to provide 

comprehensive grant proposal writing and grant management services; and        

Whereas, Consultant has professional experience and expertise in the foregoing; and 

Whereas, the Local Government desires to retain Consultant, and Consultant desires to provide 

Local Government the said professional service, all as more fully set out herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants herein 

contained the sufficiency of which being hereby acknowledged, Consultant and Local 

Government do hereby agree as follows: 

I.       Obligations Generally. The Local Government hereby employs Consultant, and 

the Consultant agrees to perform for the Local Government, those services as set out 

herein and as provided in Attachment A, which Attachment is expressly incorporated 

into this Contract.  This document shall serve as the binding contract for the services 

of Consultant. 

II.       Professional Qualifications. For the purpose of this Contract, the Consultant 

represents and warrants to the Local Government that it possesses the professional, 

technical, and administrative skills with the specific experience and training 

necessary to provide the professional services required herein. 

III.        Legal Compliance. Consultant shall at all times comply with all applicable 

Federal, State, and local laws and regulations 

IV.       Independent Contractor. Consultant acknowledges that it is an independent 

contractor, and Consultant shall at all times remain as such in performing the services 

under this Contract. Consultant is not an employee, servant, partner, or agent of the 

131



2 
 

Local Government and has no authority under this Contract, whether express or 

implied, to contract for or bind the Local Government in any manner.  The parties 

agree that Consultant shall be solely responsible for and shall have full and 

unqualified control over developing and implementing its own means and methods, as 

it deems necessary and appropriate in providing the subject services, and that the 

City’s interest herein are expressly limited to the results of said services. Consultant is 

responsible for and obligated to pay any and all federal and state income tax on any 

monies paid pursuant to this Contract. 

V.       Entire Agreement. This Contract represents the entire and integrated agreement 

between Local Government and Consultant and supersedes all prior negotiations, 

representations, or agreements, either written or oral. This Contract may be amended 

only by written instrument signed by all parties. 

VI.       Services to be rendered. Consultant is responsible for the professional quality, 

technical accuracy, timely completion and coordination of all services furnished by or 

in relation to this Contract. Consultant represents and warrants that its services shall 

be performed within the limits and standards provided by the Local Government, in a 

manner consistent with the level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by similar 

providers under similar circumstances at the time the services are performed. 

VII.      General Responsibilities of the Local Government. The Local Government shall 

pay to Consultant the compensation as, and subject to the terms set out below. The 

Local Government shall make available to Consultant all information as reasonably 

necessary to Consultant’s performance hereunder. 

VIII.       Termination of Services. It is agreed and understood by the parties to this 

Contract that either party may terminate this Contract upon thirty (90) days written 

notice to the other party. 

IX.       In the event of termination, the Local Government shall pay Consultant for all 

services satisfactorily rendered prior to the date of termination. 

X.      Compensation Limited. Compensation to Consultant for all services hereunder 

shall be paid at a total and inclusive rate of $42,000 for a twelve month period 

beginning January 1, 2016 and ending December 31, 2016 and continuing annually 

unless written notice is given to cancel contract.  It is agreed and understood by the 

parties to this Contract that either party may terminate this Contract upon thirty (90) 

days written notice to the other party. The contract will remain in force unless written 

notice of termination is given or the contract amount of $42,000 is not approved for 

appropriation in a new fiscal year budget.  The first year’s contract price of $42,000 

includes any outstanding grant work fees (currently $25,000) making the first year’s 

contract cost - $17,000.  Payment is to be paid in 12 equal monthly payments. The 

compensation to be paid to the Consultant shall be the full compensation for all work 

performed by Consultant under this Contract.   

132



3 
 

XI.       Method of Payment. Consultant shall submit monthly invoices in the amount of 

$3,500.  These invoices will coincide with delivery of proposal as described in 

Attachment A. 

XII.       Payment shall be made by the Local Government within thirty (30) days of the 

approval of the invoices submitted by the Consultant.  The Local Government agrees 

to review and approve the invoice submitted for payment in a timely manner. 

XIII.       This Contract shall be effective and commence on the date as signed by the Local 

Government and shall terminate upon the satisfactory completion of the scope of 

work as described in Attachment A. 

XIV. Force Majeure. The Parties hereto shall incur no liability to the other if performance 

becomes impossible or impracticable by reason on an event or effect that the parties 

could neither have anticipated nor controlled. This allowance shall include both an act 

of nature and acts of third parties. Any costs that would otherwise be incurred and/or 

necessitated by the provisions herein shall be alleviated for either party by such event 

or effect. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Contract as provided below: 

 

________________________________________                         

Dane Haygood, Mayor                            Date 

City of Daphne 

 

 

______________________________________ 

Cara Stallman, Owner                             Date                         

Grant Management, LLC      

 

 

________________________________________ 

ATTEST                                                   Date 

 

133



4 
 

Attachment A- Scope of Work 

Professional services will include but may not be limited to the following tasks:  

 

1. Conduct a comprehensive examination of the City's existing grant funded projects and 

provide technical assistance where needed or as requested by staff for any open grants. 

 

2. Perform a review of the City's Comprehensive Plan and other relevant  planning 

documents  to  gain  knowledge   of  development   needs.   Meet with various   City 

Officials, Department Heads, Committee Members, and staff to develop a specific list of 

identified needs that could be met with future grant funds. 

 

3. Identify funding sources for projects, and educate City Staff and Officials on grant 

program timelines, requirements, and commitment of funds and resources that would be 

necessary from the City. 

 

4. Keep City Staff and Officials informed of current grant opportunities on an on-going 

basis, including providing any relevant information, such as matching funds 

requirements. 

 

5. When authorized by the City to  apply  for  a  specific  grant, all grant  application 

preparation services will be provided. Consultant will be responsible for submitting a 

completed grant application to the funder prior to the stated deadline. Consultant will 

provide the City with a complete copy of the grant application and confirmation that the 

application was received by the funder.   Consultant will periodically check with the 

funder while the application is under review and will inform relevant City Staff and 

Officials when the grant is either funded or denied. 

 

6. When requested by the City, Consultant will provide  the  full  range   of  grant 

administration  and management  services for grant funded projects, ensuring compliance  

with all local, state and federal grant related laws, rules and regulations. Consultant will 

utilize  professional grant  management  experience  to make  certain that no project  

delays, audit  findings, or disallowed  costs  occur  in relation to any grant funded 

projects. 

 

7. Consultant will work with City Staff, Attorneys, and Accountants to establish 

comprehensive  best   management   practices  for  administration of  grant   funds, 

including  establishment  of proper financial  and  record  keeping procedures, 

procurement  and bidding and contracting practices that comply with grant applicable 

rules,  submission   of  progress and finance reports, procedures for timely and accurate 

requests for  reimbursement,  close-out  and  record  retention  procedures, and 

compliance with audit requirements. 

 

8. Consultant will be responsible for assisting City Staff in navigating state and federal 

grant related processes and will meet with funders and attend grant related meetings as 

needed or required. Consultant will be readily available to City Staff and Officials to 

research grant opportunities and to answer grant related questions. 

134



5 
 

 

9. Consultant will provide written reports on funding progress and status of grant funded 

projects to the City as requested. 

  

 

 

135



ORDINANCE NO. 2015 – 80 

 

AN ORDINANCE REMOVING CONTINGENCY REGARDING FUNDS TO THOMAS 

HOSPITAL BY THE CITY OF DAPHNE 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 2015-55 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2016 budget on October 5, 

2015; and 

WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2016 budget, the City Council has 

determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and made part of the 

Fiscal Year 2016 budget; and 

WHEREAS,  a policy has been established by the City Council in Ordinances 2015-16 and 2015-

45 that all outside entities, providing public benefit but not direct financial benefit to the City, that 

request funding from the City adhere to the tenets of the Community Grant Program; and 

WHEREAS,  the City Council by Amendment 102 of the Fiscal Year 2016 budget, made provision 

for the payment of $30,000 for Fiscal Year 2016 to Thomas Hospital for the establishment of a free 

standing emergency room; and 

WHEREAS, said Amendment 102 was passed with a contingency requiring that the free standing 

emergency room be annexed into the City before the funds would be paid; and 

WHEREAS, more than five members of the City Council considered this appropriation to be an 

exception to the terms and conditions of the Community Grants Program based on extraordinary 

circumstances shown; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to remove the contingency; and    

BE IT THEREFORE ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 Funds from the general fund are hereby appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 

2016 budget in the amount of $30,000, and to pay $30,000 a year for four (4) additional years, to 

Thomas Hospital while removing the contingency of annexation as set forth in Amendment 102.   

EFFECTIVE DATE. Provision of this amendment shall be effective and operative upon execution 

of this Ordinance. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS ___ DAY OF ________________, 2015. 

 

 

________________________________ 

Dane Haygood, Mayor 

        

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

 
136


	AGENDA
	ROLL CALL SHEET
	Council Minutes
	Council Work Session Minutes
	Backup to WS Minutes II.pdf
	Sheet1


	Public Hearing Info
	Finance Minutes
	Backup to Finance Minutes December 14 2015
	B&P Minutes Dec 7
	PREBLE RISH BAY FRONT PARK
	HatchMottMacDonaldFireStation2
	IDB Minutes - December 3
	Backup to IDB Minutes December 3
	IDB Minutes - December 16 SP Called
	Backup to IDB Minutes December 16 
	RECREATION BOARD MINUTES--11-18-15
	Utility Board Minutes
	ABC License - Red Bar Catering
	2015-76 -  RES - Gator Alley Improvements TAP Grant-2015
	Backup to 2015-76 - RES
	2015-77 - RES - ParksChemicals
	Backup to 2015-77  - RES
	2015-72 - ORD - NRCS EWP Sites-CanterburyOld Pump Plant-LF  Palmetto Ct-Addl Appropriation-1
	2015-73 - ORD - Deepwater Amend Lodging Tax Alloccation
	2015-74 - ORD - ANNEXATION - Russell Steiner - Blakely River Property
	Backup to 2015-74 - ORD - Steiner Map - Exhibit B
	2015-75 - ORD - CC Roof Drain Repairs
	Backup to 2015-75 - ORD
	2015-76 - ORD - ADEM 319 Tiawasee Creek Sub-watershed Mgmnt Proj Aprop - Final
	Backup to 2015-76 - ORD
	2015-77 - ORD - NRCS EWP Sites-CanterburyOld Pump Plant-LF  Palmetto Ct-Addl Appropriation-1
	Backup to 2015-77 - ORD
	2015-78 - ORD - TAP - Appropr Gator Alley Imprvmnts-Ord 2015-
	2015-79 - ORD -  Grant Mgmt Services City-Wide-Grant Mgmt LLC
	Backup to 2015-79 ORD - Grant Management Annual Contract 2016
	2015-80 - ORD - Thomas Hospital CGP except



